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The attached property, the Academy Hall in Hartford County,
Connecticut, reference number 77001419, was listed in the
National Register of Historic Places by the Keeper of the
National Register on 10/07/1977, as evidenced by the FEDERAL
REGISTER/WEEKLY LIST notice of Tuesday, February 6, 1979,
Part 1l, Vol. 44, No. 26, page 7441. The attached nomination form
is a copy of the original documentation provided to the Keeper
at the time of listing.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL {IF KNOWN} PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Academy Hall, situated on the northwest cornar of 0ld Main Strest
and Center Strest, is located in thes historic center of the town of
Rocky Hill, Across Center Street at the south is the federal period
Rocky Hill Congregstional Church which is also being nominated to the
National Register of illistoric FPlaces. These two important buildiugs
were not originally adjacent, but in 1921 a fire destroyed the build-
ings betwesn them. The site of the destroyed buildings is now occupied
by Center Street and the parisih house wing of the church completed in
1955, 1In an open space northwest of Academy Hall is Center School
now used for offices of the town Loard of education. This colonia
revival building was erected in 1916 and received large additions
ia Y941, Across 01ld #ain Strest from Academy Hall are several nine-
teer.th century houses, but adjacent to them at the north is a large
office building erected in 1974% which intrudes on the older, more
humenly scaled environment.

Academy Hall is basically an unadorned brick federal style builde
ing. It is distinguished by its pleasing proportions and its masonry
work The two-story freestanding building is wvery cubic in appearance
sinte’it is rectangular in plan and has a low gable roof. Fenestra-
tion fs regular. The main (east) facade has eight bays, while the
shorter gable ends have two bays. The rear (west) facade has four
windows on each floor. Doorways are located in the corner bays of
the main and rear facades.

Above the foundation of smooth, regular ashlar brawnstone,
the main facade is laid in Flemish bond. Other sides are common
honc., The horizontality of the building is increased by the balt-
course located betwesn the two stories. This features is four
bricks wide and continues around the building. Three tie rod anchors
are present on the beltcourse on both the mein and rear facades.

Openings ‘of the first story of the main facade and of both stories
of the end facades have splayed brownstone:arches. . Lintels of all
Jof. these facades are brownstone, ' The heads of ‘the second
T the main facade are very close to the cornice.~»
Theyi E “brick arches,” The'windows of the rear-facade have’
segmantal brick arches. All windows have 6/6 double-hung sash.

Some of this sash dates from the 1960's. The gable ends each have a
samicircular fanlight. The ons in the north end was reconstructed
in 1972. The sash In both is of recent origin.

The building's simple box cornice returns at the gable ends.
the “WO stoops on the main facade are recent additions which consist
of poured concrete steps and a twentieth century metal railing.

The rear doorways do not have stoops. Three doors are twentieth
century six-panel doors, but the rear north door has vertical boards,:
A4 twentieth century ch'mney is attached roughly mid-way along the ;.
wasi facade,

Before Academy Hal] was gutted by fire in 1639 1t had freestand—v ..

wg and chimneys. Remalns of these exist in the bassment.

The building has undsrgone numerous interior remodellings and
dozs not refain any significant interlor featurss. Both floors ° ..~
each have basically one large room although they do have. nonstructurals

Continued on Continuation Sheat .
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partitions. The building has baen 5
tie rods conhecting the front and re
on the first floor.

Since tha 1960's wooden additions and a brick boiler room
2ddition hava been removed from the rear of the building. Open-
ings In the west wall to thess have baen closed., In 1072 the ex=-
terior was sandblasted and repointed. The north gable which had
been covared with shingles was rebuilt in brick.

ucturally reinforcad by

t
ar walls and by metal columns
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

ticut.

The Academy Fall, a pleasing feder:
in 1803 by Abraham Jagg:rs, is one of th
educational structures with little altered

style brick building erected
w eariy ninetesnth century
xterior remaining in Connec-
The building occupises an imporiant place in the history of edu-

cation in Rocky Hill since almost continuously batween 1803 and 1941 it

housed local educational institutions.

It is also an important land-

mark in the social history of the community since its upstalirs served

for many years as a comaunity meeting hall.

Currently Academny iall

continues its educational funetion as the home of the mussum of the

Rociky Hill Historical Society, Inc.
Rocky Hill, earlier known as Stepn2y's Landing, was an important

regional maritime center in the late eighteenth century and early nine-*

taenth century.

Originally Academy Hall was closely linkad to the

maritime prosperity of the community since bigher mathematics and

navigation were taught thare.

Although ths building's_ construction

was Tinanced by public funds and public subscription, the project

banwrupted its builder, Abraham Jaggers,
. On New Years Eve, 1839, Academy
intarior was rebuilt in 1840,

Haell was gutted b} fire.
However, Rocky Hill was no longer a

The

siguificant port so a public elementary 'school replaced the earlier
From 1840 to 1916 Centar School was located' im the: building.
In the nineteenth century only the first floor was needed by the

school.

school,

hsspciation

8

The second floor was usad by community organizations, .'Its-

occupants.included. the Rocky Hill Ecclesiastical.Sociaty,the

7111 Lyceumj and the Rocky Hill Library In

public meetings were held there, = 7
By .the early twentleth century:

overcrowddd.

@ ; Rocky”

daition, "

the school in Acaﬁe@y4ﬂall‘wa§
In 1916 a new Center School building .opened adjacent

to the older building, but this structura continued to setve educawr

tional functions until 1941,
town for offices.
located thare.

in the building.

10645,

Svbsequently Academy Hall was used-bysthe
During World War II en airplane spotter station-was
In the 1950's the local American Legion.chapter met:
: By 1963 when the Rocky Hill Historical:Society.leag@d
the building, it was deteriated and threatened with demolition - Th
historical group rshabilitated it and ‘opensd their museum there in’
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